

## SECOND AMENDMENT TO NOTE PURCHASE AGREEMENT

This SECOND AMENDMENT TO NOTE PURCHASE AGREEMENT (this “*Amendment*”) is dated \_\_\_\_\_, 2023 (the “*Amendment Date*”), between the CITY OF TACOMA, WASHINGTON, a municipal corporation duly organized and existing under the laws of the State of Washington, acting by and through its Public Utilities Board (the “*Borrower*”), and KEYBANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION, a national banking association (the “*Purchaser*”). All capitalized terms used herein and not defined herein shall have the meanings set forth in the hereinafter defined Agreement.

### WITNESSETH

**WHEREAS**, the Borrower and the Purchaser, as the initial purchaser, entered into that certain Note Purchase Agreement dated May 21, 2020, as amended by the First Amendment to Note Purchase Agreement dated September 16, 2021 (together, the “*Agreement*”); and

**WHEREAS**, pursuant to Section 9.03 of the Agreement, the Agreement may be amended by a written amendment thereto executed by the Borrower and Purchaser; and

**WHEREAS**, the parties have agreed to make certain amendments to the Agreement subject to the terms and conditions set forth herein;

**NOW THEREFORE**, in consideration of the premises, the parties hereto hereby agree as follows:

Section 1. Definitions. Unless otherwise specified herein, including in the recitals hereto, all capitalized terms used in this Amendment shall have the meanings specified in the Agreement.

Section 2. Amendments to the Agreement. Upon the satisfaction of the conditions precedent set forth in Section 3 of this Amendment, the Agreement is hereby amended as follows:

2.01. Amendments, Additions and Deletions to Definitions. The following definitions in Section 1.01 of the Agreement are hereby inserted or amended as follows (deletions are ~~stricken~~ and additions are double underlined):

“*Amendment Date*” means the date that this Amendment becomes effective as provided in Section 3 of the Second Amendment.

“*Applicable Margin*” shall be 0.10% (10 basis points), subject to adjustment pursuant to Section 2.07, hereof.

“*Base Rate*” means, for any day, a fluctuating rate per annum equal to the highest of (a) the rate of interest in effect for such day as established from time to time by the Purchaser as its “prime rate,” whether or not publicly announced, which interest rate may or may not be the lowest rate

charged by it for commercial loans or other extensions of credit and (b) the Floor.

“Benchmark” means, initially, Term SOFR; provided that if a Benchmark Transition Event has occurred with respect to the then-current Benchmark, then “Benchmark” means the applicable Benchmark Replacement to the extent that such Benchmark Replacement has replaced such prior benchmark rate pursuant to Section 2.07.

“Benchmark Replacement” means, with respect to any Benchmark Transition Event for the then-current Benchmark, the sum of: (a) the alternate benchmark rate that has been selected by the Purchaser, with the consent of the Borrower, as the replacement for such Benchmark giving due consideration to (i) any selection or recommendation of a replacement benchmark rate or the mechanism for determining such a rate by the Relevant Governmental Body or (ii) any evolving or then-prevailing market convention for determining a benchmark rate as a replacement for such Benchmark for credit facilities of similar size denominated in U.S. Dollars at such time and (b) the related Benchmark Replacement Adjustment, if any; provided that, if such Benchmark Replacement as so determined would be less than the Floor, such Benchmark Replacement will be deemed to be the Floor for the purposes of this Agreement and the Note. ~~means the sum of: (a) the alternate benchmark rate (which may include Term SOFR or Daily Simple SOFR) that has been selected by the Purchaser, in consultation with the Borrower and subject to any amendment necessary to effect the Benchmark Replacement as contemplated in Section 2.07(a) and (c) hereof, giving due consideration to (i) any selection or recommendation of a replacement rate or the mechanism for determining such a rate by the Relevant Governmental Body or (ii) any evolving or then-prevailing market convention for determining a rate of interest as a replacement to LIBOR for U.S. dollar-denominated syndicated or bilateral credit facilities, and (b) the Benchmark Replacement Adjustment; provided that, if the Benchmark Replacement as so determined would be less than 0.5%, then Benchmark Replacement will be deemed to be 0.5% for the purposes of this Agreement. If the Purchaser and the Borrower have entered into a Related Swap, in selecting the alternate benchmark rate, as described above, the Purchaser shall also give due consideration to any Related Swap and the benchmark rate set forth therein, as the same may be replaced or amended in connection with a Benchmark Transition Event or otherwise, and the timing thereof. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Purchaser makes no representation nor guaranty of any kind that the alternate benchmark rate for the Note, or the date it becomes effective, shall be the same as the benchmark rate of the Related Swap or the date of effectiveness thereof.~~

“Benchmark Replacement Adjustment” means, with respect to any replacement of any then-current Benchmark with an Unadjusted Benchmark Replacement for the one month term rate, the spread

adjustment, or method for calculating or determining such spread adjustment (which may be a positive or negative value or zero), if any, that has been selected by the Purchaser, upon consent of the Borrower, giving due consideration to (a) any selection or recommendation of a spread adjustment, or method for calculating or determining such spread adjustment, for the replacement of such Benchmark with the applicable Unadjusted Benchmark Replacement by the Relevant Governmental Body or (b) any evolving or then-prevailing market convention for determining a spread adjustment, or method for calculating or determining such spread adjustment, for the replacement of such Benchmark with the applicable Unadjusted Benchmark Replacement for U.S. Dollar denominated syndicated credit facilities. ~~means, with respect to any replacement of LIBOR with an Unadjusted Benchmark Replacement for each applicable LIBOR Interest Rate Period, the spread adjustment, or method for calculating or determining such spread adjustment, (which may be a positive or negative value or zero) that has been selected by the Purchaser, in consultation with the Borrower and subject to any amendment necessary to effect the Benchmark Replacement as contemplated in Section 2.07(a) and (c) hereof, giving due consideration to (i) any selection or recommendation of a spread adjustment, or method for calculating or determining such spread adjustment, for the replacement of LIBOR with the applicable Unadjusted Benchmark Replacement by the Relevant Governmental Body or (ii) any evolving or then-prevailing market convention for determining a spread adjustment, or method for calculating or determining such spread adjustment, for the replacement of LIBOR with the applicable Unadjusted Benchmark Replacement for U.S. dollar-denominated syndicated or bilateral credit facilities at such time. If the Purchaser and the Borrower have entered into a Related Swap, in selecting the spread adjustment, or method for calculating or determining such spread adjustment, as described above, the Purchaser shall also give due consideration to any Related Swap and the benchmark rate set forth therein, as the same may be replaced or amended in connection with a Benchmark Transition Event or otherwise, and any spread adjustment related thereto, and the timing thereof. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Purchaser makes no representation nor guaranty of any kind that the alternate benchmark rate for the Note, or the date it becomes effective, shall be the same as the benchmark rate of the Related Swap or the date of effectiveness thereof.~~

“Benchmark Replacement Conforming Changes” means, with respect to any Benchmark Replacement, any technical, administrative or operational changes (including changes to the definition of “Base Rate,” the definition of “Business Day,” the definition of “SOFR Business Day,” the defined interest period or any similar or analogous definition (or the addition of a concept of “interest period”) (collectively, “Interest Period”), the timing and frequency of determining rates and making payments of interest, timing of borrowing requests or prepayment, conversion or continuation notices, length of lookback periods, and other technical,

administrative or operational matters) that the Purchaser, after consultation with the Borrower, decides may be appropriate to reflect the adoption and implementation of such Benchmark Replacement and to permit the administration thereof by the Purchaser in a manner substantially consistent with market practice (or, if the Purchaser, after consultation with the Borrower, decides that adoption of any portion of such market practice is not administratively feasible or if the Purchaser, after consultation with the Borrower, determines that no market practice for the administration of such Benchmark Replacement exists, in such other manner of administration as the Purchaser, after consultation with the Borrower, decides is reasonably necessary in connection with the administration of this Agreement or the Note). ~~means, with respect to any Benchmark Replacement, any technical, administrative or operational changes (including changes to the definition of "LIBOR Interest Rate Period," timing and frequency of determining rates and making payments of interest and other administrative matters) that the Purchaser decides may be appropriate to reflect the adoption and implementation of such Benchmark Replacement and to permit the administration thereof by the Purchaser in a manner substantially consistent with market practice (or, if the Purchaser decides that adoption of any portion of such market practice is not administratively feasible or if the Purchaser determines that no market practice for the administration of the Benchmark Replacement exists, in such other manner of administration as the Purchaser decides is reasonably necessary in connection with the administration of this Agreement). Any determination, decision or election made by the Purchaser in relation to Benchmark Replacement Conforming Changes shall be made in consultation with the Borrower and subject to any amendment necessary to effect the Benchmark Replacement as contemplated in Section 2.07(a) and (e) hereof.~~

*“Benchmark Replacement Date”* means the earlier to occur of the following events with respect to the then-current Benchmark: LIBOR:

(i) in the case of clause (i) or (ii) of the definition of “Benchmark Transition Event,” the later of (a) the date of the public statement or publication of information referenced therein and (b) the date on which the administrator of such Benchmark (or the published component used in the calculation thereof) permanently or indefinitely ceases to provide the one month term rate of such Benchmark (or such component thereof); or

(ii) in the case of clause (iii) of the definition of “Benchmark Transition Event,” the first date on which such Benchmark (or the published component used in the calculation thereof) has been determined and announced by the regulatory supervisor for the administrator of such Benchmark (or such component thereof) to be no longer representative; provided, that such non-representativeness will be determined by reference to the most recent statement or publication referenced in such clause (iii)

and even if any one month term rate of such Benchmark (or such component thereof) continues to be provided on such date.

For the avoidance of doubt, (A) if the event giving rise to the Benchmark Replacement Date for any Benchmark occurs on the same day as, but earlier than, the Reference Time in respect of any determination, the Benchmark Replacement Date will be deemed to have occurred prior to the Reference Time for such Benchmark and for such determination and (B) the “Benchmark Replacement Date” will be deemed to have occurred in the case of clause (i) or (ii) of the definition of “Benchmark Transition Event,” with respect to any Benchmark upon the occurrence of the applicable event or events set forth therein with respect to all then-current one month term rate of such Benchmark (or the published component used in the calculation thereof).

~~(a) — July 1, 2023;~~

~~(b) — the date that the 30-day tenor of US dollar-based LIBOR has either permanently or indefinitely ceased to be provided by the regulatory supervisor of US dollar-based LIBOR’s administrator (“IBA”) or has been announced by the Financial Conduct Authority (“FCA”) pursuant to public statement or publication of information to be no longer representative;~~

~~(c) — an Early Opt-in Election.~~

“Benchmark Transition Event” means, with respect to the then-current Benchmark, the occurrence of one or more of the following events with respect to such Benchmark:

(i) a public statement or publication of information by or on behalf of the administrator of such Benchmark (or the published component used in the calculation thereof) announcing that such administrator has ceased or will cease to provide the one month term rate of such Benchmark (or such component thereof), permanently or indefinitely, provided that, at the time of such statement or publication, there is no successor administrator that will continue to provide any one month term rate of such Benchmark (or such component thereof);

(ii) a public statement or publication of information by the regulatory supervisor for the administrator of such Benchmark (or the published component used in the calculation thereof), the Federal Reserve Board, the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, an insolvency official with jurisdiction over the administrator for such Benchmark (or such component), a resolution authority with jurisdiction over the administrator for such Benchmark (or such component) or a court or an entity with similar insolvency or resolution authority over the administrator for such

Benchmark (or such component), which states that the administrator of such Benchmark (or such component) has ceased or will cease to provide the one month term rate of such Benchmark (or such component thereof) permanently or indefinitely, provided that, at the time of such statement or publication, there is no successor administrator that will continue to provide any one month term rate of such Benchmark (or such component thereof); or

(iii) a public statement or publication of information by the regulatory supervisor for the administrator of such Benchmark (or the published component used in the calculation thereof) announcing that the one month term rate of such Benchmark (or such component thereof) is no longer, or as of a specified future date will no longer be, representative.

For the avoidance of doubt, a “Benchmark Transition Event” will be deemed to have occurred with respect to any Benchmark if a public statement or publication of information set forth above has occurred with respect to each then-current one month term rate of such Benchmark (or the published component used in the calculation thereof).

~~means the occurrence of one or more of the following events with respect to LIBOR:~~

~~(a) — the date of July 1, 2023;~~

~~(b) — the 30 day tenor of US dollar-based LIBOR has either permanently or indefinitely ceased to be provided by the regulatory supervisor of US dollar-based LIBOR’s administrator (“IBA”) or has been announced by the Financial Conduct Authority (“FCA”) pursuant to public statement or publication of information to be no longer representative;~~

~~(c) — an Early Opt-in Election.~~

“Benchmark Transition Start Date” means, with respect to any Benchmark, in the case of a Benchmark Transition Event, the earlier of (i) the applicable Benchmark Replacement Date and (ii) if such Benchmark Transition Event is a public statement or publication of information of a prospective event, the 90th day prior to the expected date of such event as of such public statement or publication of information (or if the expected date of such prospective event is fewer than 90 days after such statement or publication, the date of such statement or publication). ~~means (a) in the case of a Benchmark Transition Event, the earlier of (i) the applicable Benchmark Replacement Date and (ii) if such Benchmark Transition Event is a public statement or publication of information of a prospective event, the 90th day prior to the expected date of such event as of such public statement or publication of information (or if the expected date of such~~

~~prospective event is fewer than 90 days after such statement or publication, the date of such statement or publication), and (b) in the case of an Early Opt-in Election, the date specified by the Purchaser by notice to the Borrower.~~

~~“Benchmark Unavailability Period” means, with respect to any then-current Benchmark, the period (if any) (a) beginning at the time that a Benchmark Replacement Date with respect to such Benchmark has occurred if, at such time, no Benchmark Replacement has replaced such Benchmark for all purposes hereunder and under any Related Document and (b) ending at the time that a Benchmark Replacement has replaced such Benchmark for all purposes hereunder and under this Agreement. means, if a Benchmark Transition Event and its related Benchmark Replacement Date have occurred with respect to LIBOR and solely to the extent that LIBOR has not been replaced with a Benchmark Replacement (or if the parties have not reached agreement on the amendment necessary to effect the Benchmark Replacement as contemplated in Section 2.07(a) and (c) hereof), the period beginning at the time that such Benchmark Replacement Date has occurred if, at such time, no Benchmark Replacement has replaced LIBOR for all purposes hereunder in accordance with Section 2.07 hereof (or if the parties have not reached agreement on the amendment necessary to effect the Benchmark Replacement as contemplated in Section 2.07(a) and (c) hereof), and ending at the time that a Benchmark Replacement has replaced LIBOR for all purposes hereunder pursuant to Section 2.07.~~

~~“Business Day” means a day which is (a) not a Saturday, Sunday or legal holiday on which banking institutions in Tacoma, Washington or New York, New York or the states where the principal corporate office of the Borrower or the principal corporate trust office of the Paying Agent is located are authorized by law to close, (b) not a day on which the New York Stock Exchange or the Federal Reserve Bank is closed, (c) not a day on which the principal offices of the Calculation Agent or the principal office of the Purchaser is closed or (d) with respect to all notices and determinations in connection with, and payments of principal and interest on, the Note, any day that is a Business Day described in clauses (a), (b) and (c) and that is also a day for trading by and between banks in Dollar deposits in the London interbank market; provided, with respect to any matters relating to calculation of the interest rate based on SOFR, a SOFR Business Day shall be used in lieu of a Business Day.~~

~~“CBA” means CME Group Benchmark Administration Limited.~~

~~“Computation Date” means for the Term SOFR Index Rate, the second SOFR Business Day immediately preceding each Term SOFR Index Reset Date. For the period beginning on the Amendment Date, to, but not including, the first Term SOFR Index Reset Date, the Computation Date shall be one SOFR Business Day prior to the Amendment Date. means,~~

~~with respect to an Advance, the second London Banking Day immediately preceding each Libor Index Reset Date; provided that, if there are no Advances outstanding, then with respect to a new Advance, the initial Computation Date shall be the second London Banking Day immediately preceding the date of such Advance.~~

~~“Daily Simple SOFR” means, for any day, SOFR, with the conventions for this rate (which will include a lookback) being established by the Purchaser in accordance with the conventions for this rate recommended by the Relevant Governmental Body for determining “Daily Simple SOFR” for business loans; provided, that if the Purchaser decides that any such convention is not administratively feasible for the Purchaser, then the Purchaser may establish another convention in its reasonable discretion.~~

~~“Early Opt in Election” means the occurrence of: (a) a determination by the Purchaser that at least five currently outstanding U.S. dollar denominated syndicated or bilateral credit facilities at such time contain (as a result of amendment or as originally executed) as a benchmark interest rate, in lieu of LIBOR, a new benchmark interest rate to replace LIBOR, and (b) the election by the Purchaser to declare that an Early Opt in Election has occurred and the provision by the Purchaser of written notice of such election to the Borrower.~~

~~“Floor” means a rate of interest equal to 0.50%.~~

~~“Index Rate” means the Term SOFR Index Rate LIBOR Index Rate or the Default Rate, as applicable.~~

~~“Index Reset Date” means the Term SOFR Index Reset Date LIBOR Index Reset Date.~~

~~“LIBOR Business Day” means a day on which (a) banks are not required or authorized to close in Cleveland, Ohio, and (b) dealings are carried on in the London interbank Eurodollar market.~~

~~“LIBOR Fixed Rate” means the rate of interest per annum determined by the Calculation Agent based on the rate for United States dollar deposits for delivery on the LIBOR Index Reset Date for a period equal to one month as reported on Reuters Screen LIBOR0 1 page (or any successor page) at approximately 11:00 a.m., London time, on each Computation Date (or if not so reported, then as determined by the Calculation Agent from another recognized source of interbank quotation). Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in the foregoing, in the event that LIBOR shall be equal to or less than zero percent (0.00%), LIBOR shall be deemed to be zero percent (0.00%).~~



~~“LIBOR Interest Rate Period” means a period of one month, not to exceed the Commitment Expiration Date of the Note, or the Amortization End Date, should the Amortization Period be applicable.~~

~~“LIBOR Index Rate” means a per annum rate of interest established on each Computation Date equal to the LIBOR Fixed Rate plus 0.50%; provided, however, that immediately and upon the occurrence of an Event of Default (and without any notice given with respect thereto) and during the continuation of such Event of Default, the LIBOR Index Rate shall mean the Default Rate.~~

~~“LIBOR Index Reset Date” shall mean the first Business Day of each calendar month.~~

~~“Prime Rate” means the rate per annum from time to time established by Purchaser as Purchaser’s Prime Rate, whether or not such rate is publicly announced; the Prime Rate may not be the lowest interest rate charged by Purchaser for commercial or other extensions of credit. In the event of any change in the Prime Rate, the rate of interest applicable to the Borrower’s loans evidenced hereby shall be adjusted to immediately correspond with each such change. In the event that the Prime Rate, is determined to be less than 0.50%, such index shall be deemed to be 0.50% for purposes of computation of interest.~~

~~“Relevant Governmental Body” means the Federal Reserve Board or the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, or a committee officially endorsed or convened by the Federal Reserve Board or the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, or any successor thereto, the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System or the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, or a committee officially endorsed or convened by the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System or the Federal Reserve Bank of New York, or any successor thereto.~~

~~“Second Amendment” means the Second Amendment to Note Purchase Agreement, dated \_\_\_\_\_, 2023, between the Purchaser and the Borrower.~~

~~“SOFR Business Day” means any day except for (i) a Saturday, (ii) a Sunday or (iii) a day on which the Securities Industry and Financial Markets Association recommends that the fixed income departments of its members be closed for the entire day for purposes of trading in United States government securities.~~

~~“Term SOFR” or “Term SOFR Rate” means, with respect to any Computation Date, the forward-looking one month term rate based on the secured overnight financing rate that is published by the Term SOFR Administrator (“One Month Term SOFR”) and displayed on CME’s Market~~

Data Platform (or other commercially available source providing such quotations as may be selected by the Calculation Agent from time to time), at approximately 6:00 a.m. New York City time, on such Computation Date (and rounded to the nearest 1/16th of 1%); provided that if by 5:00 pm (New York City time) on any Computation Date, One Month Term SOFR for such day has not been published, then such One Month Term SOFR for such day will be such One Month Term SOFR as published in respect of the first preceding SOFR Business Day for which such rate was published; provided, further, that One Month Term SOFR determined pursuant to this sentence shall be utilized for purposes of calculation of One Month Term SOFR for no more than three consecutive SOFR Business Days means, for the applicable corresponding tenor, the forward-looking term rate based on SOFR that has been selected or recommended by the Relevant Governmental Body.

“Term SOFR Index Rate” means the rate per annum determined by the Calculation Agent on each Computation Date, equal to the sum of (a) the Term SOFR Rate, (b) 0.44% (44 basis points) and (c) the Applicable Margin. In the event that the Term SOFR Rate or any other index that may be used to calculate interest due under the terms of the Note is determined to be less than zero, such index shall be deemed to be zero for purposes of the Note.

“Term SOFR Administrator” means CBA (or a successor administrator of the forward-looking secured overnight financing rate).

“Term SOFR Index Reset Date” means the first day of each month, beginning the month following the Amendment Date.

“Unadjusted Benchmark Replacement” means the Benchmark Replacement excluding the Benchmark Replacement Adjustment.

2.02. Amendment to Section 2.01. Section 2.01 of the Agreement is hereby amended as follows (deletions are ~~stricken~~ and additions are double underlined):

*Section 2.01. Issuance of Note; Commitment to Make Advances.*

(a) This Agreement reflects the terms and conditions under which the Purchaser shall provide the Borrower with an operating revolving Line of Credit and, upon request of the Borrower, shall issue one or more Letters of Credit.

From the Effective Date through five Business Days prior to the Termination Date, and upon and subject to the terms and conditions and on the basis of the representations, warranties and agreements contained herein, the Purchaser hereby agrees, when requested by the Borrower

pursuant to this Agreement, to make Line of Credit Advances from time to time (but in no event more than two (2) per calendar month) and to issue Letters of Credit from time to time thereunder. The aggregate principal amount of all Line of Credit Advances and Letter of Credit Amounts outstanding at any time shall not to exceed the Initial Available Commitment.

The Borrower hereby agrees to issue the Note in an aggregate principal amount equal to \$50,000,000.00, to the Purchaser, under the terms and conditions of the Note Ordinance to evidence and secure the Borrower's obligations under this Agreement.

The Note evidences the Borrower's obligations under this Agreement, is authorized pursuant to the Note Ordinance, and is to be issued only for the purposes authorized under the Note Ordinance. The Note is issued as "Subordinate Bonds" under the Note Ordinance and, pursuant to the Note Ordinance, the principal of and interest on the Note is payable from and secured by a subordinate lien on and pledge of Revenues, subject to the terms and conditions of the Note Ordinance.

The Note shall contain a record on which each Advance and each Letter of Credit Amount shall be recorded by the Purchaser; *provided, however,* that the failure to do so or any other act or omission of the Purchaser shall not relieve the Borrower from its obligations as provided herein. Such record shall be conclusive as to such amounts absent manifest error.

(b) The amount available for Line of Credit Advances and Letter of Credit Amounts is \$50,000,000.00; provided, however, at no time shall the Letter of Credit Aggregate Amount exceed \$25,000,000.00.

(c) The obligations of the Borrower under this Agreement shall (i) be evidenced and secured by the Note, which will be delivered to the Purchaser on the Effective Date, (ii) be secured by the Revenues as set forth in the Note Ordinance, and (iii) mature on the Commitment Expiration Date. Each Line of Credit Advance made and each Letter of Credit issued under this Agreement shall be in a minimum principal amount of \$100,000; provided that Letter of Credit Advances shall be in the principal amount of the corresponding draw on the applicable Letter of Credit and shall not require submission of a Request for Line of Credit Advance or Letter of Credit. Interest on each Advance shall be calculated on the basis of a year of 360 days and actual days elapsed from the Advance Date.

(d) In the event of a Letter of Credit Advance due to a draw on a Letter of Credit, the Borrower may reinstate the applicable Letter of Credit to the original stated amount of the Letter of Credit Amount by written

instruction to the Purchaser to reinstatement the Letter of Credit Amount with the date of reinstatement and the payment of all Letter of Credit Advances with respect to such draws, with interest accruing on such Letter of Credit Advances to the date of reinstatement.

(e) The interest accruing on the Note, which is denominated in U.S. Dollars, may be determined by reference to a benchmark rate that is, or may in the future become, the subject of regulatory reform or cessation. The Purchaser does not warrant or accept responsibility for, and shall not have any liability with respect to (i) the administration of, submission of, calculation of or any other matter related to Term SOFR, any component definition thereof or rates referenced in the definition thereof or any alternative, comparable or successor rate thereto (including any then-current Benchmark or any Benchmark Replacement), including whether the composition or characteristics of any such alternative, comparable or successor rate (including any Benchmark Replacement) will be similar to, or produce the same value or economic equivalence of, or have the same volume or liquidity as, Term SOFR or any other Benchmark, or (ii) the effect, implementation or composition of any Benchmark Replacement Conforming Changes.

2.03. Amendment to Section 2.03. Section 2.03 of the Agreement is hereby amended as follows (deletions are ~~stricken~~ and additions are double underlined):

*Section 2.03. Method of Requesting Line of Credit Advances and Letters of Credit.*

(a) Each Line of Credit Advance and each request for, or modification of, a Letter of Credit shall be made upon the Borrower's irrevocable notice to the Purchaser in the form of a Request for Line of Credit Advance or Letter of Credit with blanks appropriately completed and signed by a Borrower Representative.

Any Request for Line of Credit Advance shall specify: (1) the Line of Credit Advance Date which shall be a SOFR Business Day ~~LIBOR Business Day~~ and shall be at least three SOFR Business Days ~~LIBOR Business Days~~ after the date of the Request for Line of Credit Advance; and (2) the principal amount of the requested Advance.

Any Request for the issuance of a Letter of Credit, including a modification to an existing Letter of Credit, shall specify the Letter of Credit Amount, the beneficiary, the proposed delivery date or date of modification, as applicable, and the expiration date of such Letter of Credit, and describe the proposed terms of such Letter of Credit and the nature of the transactions proposed to be supported thereby. In addition, the Borrower shall complete such forms as the letter of credit department of the Purchaser requires. No

Letter of Credit may have an expiration date later than the earlier of (x) the fifth Business Day before the Termination Date and (y) one year after its issuance.

The aggregate principal amount of all Line of Credit Advances and Letter of Credit Amounts in all cases shall not exceed the Available Commitment as of the proposed Advance Date or Letter of Credit issue date, as applicable.

(b) Each Request for Line of Credit Advance must be received by the Purchaser not later than 12:00 noon Cleveland time three SOFR Business Days ~~LIBOR Business Days~~ immediately prior to the requested Advance Date. Upon receipt of such Request for Line of Credit Advance by the Purchaser, the Purchaser, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, shall be required to make a Line of Credit Advance by 3:00 p.m. Cleveland time on the proposed Advance Date for the account of the Borrower in an amount equal to the amount of the requested Line of Credit Advance. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event such Request for Line of Credit Advance is received by the Purchaser after 12:00 noon Cleveland time on the Business Day which is three (3) SOFR Business Days ~~LIBOR Business Days~~ immediately prior to the day of the proposed Line of Credit Advance, the Purchaser shall be required to make the related Line of Credit Advance by 3:00 p.m. on the fourth SOFR Business Days ~~LIBOR Business Day~~ after receipt of the related Request for Line of Credit Advance. The Calculation Agent ~~Purchaser~~ shall determine the Term SOFR Index Rate ~~LIBOR Index Rate~~ with respect to any Request for Line of Credit Advance ~~two Business Days Advance Date~~ based on the applicable Computation Date.

Each Request for the issuance or modification of a Letter of Credit must be received by the Purchaser not later than 12:00 noon Cleveland time three Business Days immediately prior to the requested delivery date. Upon receipt of such Request by the Purchaser, the Purchaser, subject to the terms and conditions of this Agreement, shall be required to issue the Letter of Credit by 3:00 p.m. Cleveland time on the proposed delivery date in an amount equal to the requested Letter of Credit Amount. Notwithstanding the foregoing, in the event such Request is received by the Purchaser after 12:00 noon Cleveland time on the Business Day which is three Business Days immediately prior to the day of the proposed delivery, the Purchaser shall be required to issue the Letter of Credit by 3:00 p.m. on the fourth Business Day after receipt of the related Request for said Letter of Credit. On or before the date of delivery of any Letter of Credit, the Borrower shall pay the Purchaser the Letter of Credit Issuance Fee. The Letter of Credit Fee shall accrue as of the date of delivery of the applicable Letter of Credit until such Letter of Credit is cancelled or otherwise terminated.

(c) The initial Index Rate for any Advance shall be the Term SOFR Index Rate ~~LIBOR Index Rate~~. The Calculation Agent shall determine the Term SOFR Index Rate on each Computation Date, and such rate shall become effective on the SOFR Index Reset Date next succeeding the Computation Date and interest at such rate shall accrue each day with respect to the Note, commencing on and including the next succeeding SOFR Index Reset Date to but excluding the immediately succeeding SOFR Index Reset Date. The Calculation Agent shall notify the Paying Agent and the Borrower of the Term SOFR Index Rate ~~LIBOR Index Rate~~ with respect to each Term SOFR Index Rate Date ~~LIBOR Index Reset Date~~. The Calculation Agent's internal records and applicable interest rates shall be determinative in the absence of manifest error. If the Borrower requests an Advance with waiver of the at least three or five, as applicable, Term SOFR Business Days ~~LIBOR Business Days~~ period before the date of the Request for Line of Credit Advance, and Purchaser is agreeable to such waiver of said three or five, as applicable, Term SOFR Business Days ~~LIBOR Business Days~~ period, then during such period between the date of the actual date of Advance, and the date for which the Advance would be available absent such waiver by Purchaser, the Index Rate for said period shall be the shall be the Base Rate ~~Prime Rate~~.

2.04. Amendment to Section 2.04. Section 2.04 of the Agreement is hereby amended as follows (deletions are ~~stricken~~ and additions are double underlined):

(a) Each Advance shall bear interest at a rate per annum equal to the lesser of (1) the Maximum Interest Rate and (2) the Index Rate.

(b) Each Letter of Credit shall incur fees at a rate per annum equal to the Letter of Credit Fee. Such fees shall accrue and be payable in the same manner and the same frequency as Advances. Upon a Letter of Credit Advance, the amount of the Letter of Credit so advanced shall cease incurring the Letter of Credit Fee and instead accrue interest as a Line of Credit Advance as provided in Section 2.08. While an Event of Default is continuing, at the option of the Purchaser, the interest rate on any Letter of Credit Advance may be increased to the Default Rate.

(c) Any principal of, and to the extent permitted by applicable law, interest on the Note and any other sum payable hereunder, which is not paid when due shall bear interest, from the date due and payable until paid, payable on demand, at a rate per annum equal to the lesser of (i) the Default Rate and (ii) the Maximum Interest Rate.

(d) Notwithstanding the terms of the Second Amendment, for purposes of computing interest on the Note, the terms of the Second Amendment shall not be used, and the existing terms of the Agreement prior to the Amendment Date shall be used, for calculation of interest accruing on the Note prior to the Amendment Date.

2.05. Amendment to Section 2.05(b). Section 2.05(b) of the Agreement is amended by inserting “SOFR Index Reset Date” for “LIBOR Index Reset Date” in the first sentence of said paragraph (b).

2.06. Amendment to Section 2.07. Section 2.07 of the Agreement is amended as follows (deletions are ~~stricken~~ and additions are double underlined):

*Section 2.07. Temporary Inability to Determine Rates; Effect of Benchmark Transition Event.*

(a) *Temporary Inability to Determine Rates.* If the Purchaser determines (which determination shall be conclusive and binding absent manifest error) that Term SOFR cannot be determined pursuant to the definition thereof or that Term SOFR does not adequately and fairly reflect the cost to the Purchaser of funding the Note, then the Purchaser will promptly so notify the Borrower. Upon notice thereof by the Purchaser to the Borrower, any obligation of the Purchaser to make or continue loans pursuant to draws shall be suspended until the Purchaser revokes such notice. Upon receipt of such notice, (i) the Borrower may revoke any pending request for draws or, failing that, the Borrower will be deemed to have converted any such request into a request for a draw based on the Base Rate in the amount specified therein and (ii) for any outstanding draws the interest rate shall be converted to the Base Rate at the end of the applicable Term SOFR Index Reset Date.

(b) *Benchmark Replacement.*

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any other Related Document (and any Swap Agreement shall be deemed not to be a “Related Document” for purposes of this Section), upon the determination by the Purchaser (which shall be conclusive absent manifest error) that a Benchmark Transition Event ~~or an Early Opt-in Election~~ has occurred, ~~as applicable~~, the Purchaser and the Borrower may amend this Agreement to replace the Term SOFR Rate ~~LIBOR Fixed Rate~~ with a Benchmark Replacement, including modification of the Applicable Margin. Any such amendment will become effective at 5:00 p.m. on the fifth (5th) Business Day after the Purchaser and the Borrower execute such amendment (or such later date as the Purchaser and Borrower shall designate in such amendment as the effective date of the Benchmark Replacement). No replacement of

Term SOFR Rate ~~LIBOR Fixed Rate~~ with a Benchmark Replacement pursuant to this Section will occur prior to the applicable Benchmark Transition Start Date.

(~~b~~c) *Benchmark Replacement Conforming Changes.* In connection with the implementation and administration of a Benchmark Replacement, the Purchaser and the Borrower acknowledge the possible need to make Benchmark Replacement Conforming Changes to this Agreement from time to time and, notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein or in any other Related Document, any amendments implementing such Benchmark Replacement Conforming Changes will become effective as provided in such amending document.

(~~e~~d) *Notices; Standards for Decisions and Determinations.* The Purchaser will promptly notify the Borrower in writing of (i) any occurrence of a Benchmark Transition Event ~~or an Early Opt-in Election, as applicable,~~ and its related Benchmark Replacement Date and Benchmark Transition Start Date, (ii) the implementation of any Benchmark Replacement, (iii) the need for and the effectiveness of any Benchmark Replacement Conforming Changes and (iv) the commencement or conclusion of any Benchmark Unavailability Period. Any determination, decision or election pursuant to clauses (i) and (iv) that may be made by the Purchaser pursuant to this Section, will be conclusive and binding absent manifest error and may be made in the Purchaser's sole discretion and without consent from the Borrower. Action pursuant to clauses (ii) and (iii) shall be made in accordance with the amending document entered into between the Purchaser and the Borrower.

(~~d~~e) *Benchmark Unavailability Period.* Upon the Borrower's receipt of notice from the Purchaser of the commencement of a Benchmark Unavailability Period, the Index Rate shall be the Base Rate Prime in effect ~~on such day.~~

Section 3. Conditions Precedent. This Amendment shall be effective as of the Amendment Date subject to satisfaction of or waiver by the Purchaser of all of the following conditions:

3.01. Delivery by the Borrower of an executed (a) counterpart of this Amendment and (b) Ordinance No. \_\_\_\_\_ passed by the City Council on \_\_\_\_\_, 2023 (the "*Supplemental Ordinance*").

3.02. Receipt by the Purchaser of (a) an authorizing resolution of the Public Utilities Board as the governing body of the Borrower approving this Amendment, the Supplemental Ordinance and the amendments to the Note, (b) an executed replacement Note in the principal amount of not to exceed \$50,000,000, (c) a certificate dated the Amendment Date and executed by a Borrower Representative certifying the names and signatures of the persons



authorized to sign, on behalf of the Borrower, this Amendment and the Supplemental Ordinance and the other documents to be delivered by it hereunder or thereunder, and (ed) an opinion of Note Counsel, on which the Purchaser is entitled to rely, in form and substance reasonably acceptable to the Purchaser, to the effect that this Second Amendment is a legal, valid and binding obligation of the Borrower, and including such other customary matters as the Purchaser may reasonable request.

3.03. All other legal matters pertaining to the execution and delivery of this Amendment shall be reasonably satisfactory to the Purchaser and its counsel.

Section 4. Representations and Warranties of the Borrower.

4.01. The Borrower hereby represents and warrants that the following statements shall be true and correct as of the date hereof:

(a) The representations and warranties of the Borrower contained in Article V of the Agreement are true and correct on and as of the date hereof as though made on and as of such date (except to the extent the same expressly relate to an earlier date).

(b) No Event of Default nor any condition, event or act which with the giving of notice or the passage of time or both would constitute an Event of Default has occurred and is continuing or would result from the execution of this Amendment.

4.02. In addition to the representations given in Article V of the Agreement, the Borrower hereby represents and warrants as follows:

(a) The execution, delivery and performance by the Borrower of this Amendment and the Agreement, as amended hereby, are within its powers, have been duly authorized by all necessary action and do not contravene any law, rule or regulation, any judgment, order or decree or any contractual restriction binding on or affecting the Borrower.

(b) No authorization, approval or other action by, and no notice to or filing with, any governmental authority or regulatory body is required for the due execution, delivery and performance by the Borrower of this Amendment or the Agreement, as amended hereby.

(c) This Amendment and the Agreement, as amended hereby, constitute legal, valid and binding obligations of the Borrower enforceable against the Borrower in accordance with their respective terms, except that (i) the enforcement thereof may be limited by bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, liquidation, moratorium and other laws relating to or affecting the enforcement of creditors' rights and remedies generally, as the same may be applied in the event of the bankruptcy, reorganization, insolvency, liquidation or similar situation of the Borrower, and (ii) no representation or warranty is expressed as to the availability of equitable remedies.

Section 5. Miscellaneous. Except as specifically amended herein, the Agreement shall continue in full force and effect in accordance with its terms. Reference to this Amendment need not be made in any note, document, agreement, letter, certificate, the Agreement or any communication issued or made subsequent to or with respect to the Agreement, it being hereby agreed that any reference to the Agreement shall be sufficient to refer to, and shall mean and be a reference to, the Agreement, as hereby amended and as it may be further amended in the future in accordance with its terms. In case any one or more of the provisions contained herein should be invalid, illegal or unenforceable in any respect, the validity, legality and enforceability of the remaining provisions contained herein shall not in any way be affected or impaired hereby. The Borrower hereby agrees to pay the reasonable fees and expenses of legal counsel incurred by the Purchaser in connection with this Amendment promptly after the Borrower's receipt of an invoice for the same. THIS AMENDMENT SHALL BE GOVERNED BY, AND CONSTRUED IN ACCORDANCE WITH, THE LAWS OF THE STATE OF WASHINGTON WITHOUT GIVING EFFECT TO CONFLICTS OF LAWS PROVISIONS.

This Amendment may be simultaneously executed in several counterparts, each of which shall be an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument.

[REMAINDER OF PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK; SIGNATURE PAGE FOLLOWS]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment to be duly executed and delivered as of the Amendment Date.

KEYBANK NATIONAL ASSOCIATION

By \_\_\_\_\_  
Name: Matt Zehnder  
Title: Director

CITY OF TACOMA, WASHINGTON

By \_\_\_\_\_  
Name: Chris Robinson,  
Title: Superintendent/Chief Operating Officer,  
Department of Public Utilities, Light Division